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Feb 27, 2023 
 
Virginia Outdoors Foundation  
Preservation Trust Fund Program  
P.O. Box 85073 
PMB 38979 
Richmond, VA 23285-5073 
 
 
Dear Grant Application Review Board,   
 
I am writing to you to th State Park, Seven Bends State 
Park and to articulate the impact that this grant application, if awarded, would make.  
 
The purpose of Seven Bends State Park, the gateway to the heart of the Shenandoah Valley, is 
to provide water and land based outdoor recreational and educational opportunities while 
protecting and interpreting the spectacular scenic view shed and the unique geological, natural, 
and historical resources of the storied Seven Bends area of the North Fork of the Shenandoah 
River in Virginia. 
 
The park consists of 1,066 acres situated in the geographically unique Seven Bends area of the 
River. It has approximately 3.8 miles of river front and 8 miles of trails. The eastern boundary 
of the park borders the U.S. Forest ngton-Jefferson National Forest and 
it is adjacent to the town of Woodstock Virginia. Over the past three years, Seven Bends State 
Park has seen an average of 81,000 annual visitors.  
 
Seven Bends is currently being developed in a phased approach, with later phases focusing on 
camping, interpretive and overnight facilities. Unfortunately, the current low water bridges will 
not allow the later phases to be developed as is and serves a barrier to access of public lands. 
The Virginia Department of Transportation recently conducted an access study for Seven 
Bends and the parcel of land on S. Hollingsworth Rd. that is the focus of the grant application 
is crucial in allowing for the addition of a more substantial bridge to replace what is currently a 
bottleneck in access to the park and adjacent homes and businesses. 
 
In addition to better access of Seven Bends State Park, the parcel has the ability of offering 
additional public parking and use of the river that would be an excellent complement to what is 
offered at Seven Bends State Park. While this property is not directly connected to the park it 
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will directly impact the park by allowing future development and improved public use of the 
North Fork of the Shenandoah River.  
 
 
 

Thank you,  

 
 
Dustin Haymaker, Park Manager  
Seven Bends and Shenandoah River State Parks 



            Travis Voyles
Acting Secretary of Natural                                   

and Historic Resources                              

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA
Department of Wildlife Resources Ryan J. Brown

Executive Director              

February 16, 2023

Virginia Outdoors Foundation:

One key segment of the Virginia Department of Wildlife Resources (VDWR) mission is to “connect” the 
public to wildlife.  The Department does this through improving access to public lands and waterways.  
VDWR strives to acquire/develop public access every 3-5 miles on navigable rivers throughout the 
Commonwealth.  There are currently only a handful of developed public access sites across the entire 
North Fork Shenandoah River.  VDWR routinely partners with localities in developing and maintaining 
access sites on navigable rivers across Virginia.  VDWR is very supportive of Shenandoah County 
acquiring property where Hollingsworth Road crosses the North Fork Shenandoah River.  We would 
enter into an agreement with the County to develop and maintain a public access site.  Acquiring public 
access at this location would greatly benefit the local community as there is currently public access to the
North Fork downstream at Seven Bends State Park.  Please consider VDWR’s support for this acquisition 
when reviewing Shenandoah County’s request for VOF grant funding.

Sincerely,

Stephen J. Reeser                                                                                                                                               
Regional Fisheries Manager                                                                                                                               
Virginia Department of Wildlife Resources                                                                  
steve.reeser@dwr.virginia.gov

7870 VILLA PARK DRIVE, SUITE 400, P.O. BOX 90778, HENRICO, VA 23228
                                               Equal Opportunity Employment, Programs and Facilities









¯


